
MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & FROM: Sofia Navarro
CITY COUNCIL Interim Director, Economic 

& Workforce Development
Department

SUBJECT: Update on Planning for a New Police 
Administration Building

DATE: March 14, 2023

City Administrator Approval Date:

INFORMATION

This memorandum summarizes the City’s past and recent efforts to plan for the replacement of 
the existing Police Administration Building, which is beyond its useful life, insufficient for current 
and future needs, and out of compliance with contemporary life safety standards. It summarizes 
key findings from the attached economic analysis, which recommends a public-private 
partnership (P3) to finance and deliver a replacement facility and the next step of issuing a 
solicitation for P3 proposals.

BACKGROUND/LEGISLATIVE HISTORY

The existing Police Administration Building (PAB) is located in a nine-story, 274,200 square foot 
facility bound by Broadway, Washington, 6th and 7th Streets. Construction of the building was 
completed in 1961 and most of its systems are beyond their useful life. It does not meet present 
or future operational needs, nor does it meet contemporary life safety standards for emergency 
response facilities.

In 2017, the City completed a feasibility study (2017 Report) which recommended building a 
new 360,000-380,000 square foot PAB with fleet parking on the City-owned property at 633
Hegenberger Road (Homebase Site). The cost of the new facility was estimated at $550 million,
or approximately $800 million in 2022 dollars. This significant cost deterred further action1.

On February 15, 2022, Council passed Resolution 89037 C.M.S. directing staff to issue a Notice 
of Development Opportunity for a mixed-use development with affordable housing where the 
existing PAB is located. This would require relocation of the PAB.

In late 2021, the City Administrator convened an interdepartmental group – including the Police, 
Public Works, Finance, and Economic & Workforce Development (EWD) Departments – to 
consider alternative strategies for financing and delivering a project of this scale. EWD hired an 

1 Since the 2017 Report, the Police Department has identified an additional need for a driver training 
facility, which would require about 10 acres of land. The City could pursue delivery of a driver training 
facility separately from the PAB since the site requirements are very different.
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economic consultant, Economic & Planning Systems (EPS), to review the 2017 Report, update 
the report’s conclusions and advise on alternative finance and project delivery strategies. 
 
 
KEY FINDINGS AND NEXT STEP 

EPS provided the attached memo with the following key conclusions: 
 

 The cost of building a new, centralized PAB facility has likely increased significantly from 
the amount estimated in the 2017 Report. 

 The Coliseum area, which includes the Homebase Site, and its access routes is 
susceptible to future flood risk, and therefore may not be well suited for a new PAB. 

 The standard funding and financing tools commonly used by California municipalities to 
deliver major public facilities are unlikely to cover the full costs of a new PAB within the 
foreseeable future. 

 Initial investigations suggest there may be other sites and delivery options that could 
reduce costs, improve financing, and expedite development of new PAB facilities, 
including locations that are less susceptible to sea level rise and flooding.  

 A solicitation document, such as Request for Qualifications, Proposal, or Information 
(RFP/RFQ or RFI), for City participation in a public-private partnership may provide a 
financially viable approach to delivering a new PAB. 

 Such a solicitation could, for example, yield a lease-back financing structure under which 
a facility could be built and financed by a private party to the City’s specifications, with 
the financing secured by the City’s long-term lease of that facility. This would allow the 
City to avoid taking on the large up-front debt required by traditional public financing 
strategies. There are several examples of public entities pursuing this approach in and 
beyond California. 

 
As the next step, in accordance with these findings and recommendations, the aforementioned 
departments will work with EPS to prepare and issue a solicitation document (RFP/RFQ or RFI) 
for P3 proposals. 
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For questions regarding this report, please contact Brendan Moriarty, Real Property Asset 
Manager, Economic and Workforce Development Department, at bmoriarty@oaklandca.gov or
(510) 238-6354.

Respectfully submitted,

SOFIA NAVARRO
Interim Director, Economic & 
Workforce Development Department

Prepared By: 
Brendan Moriarty, Real Property Asset 
Manager, Economic & Workforce Development 
Department

Attachment (1): EPS Memorandum
































